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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Airmid Real Estate Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Airmid Real estate Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) m the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, its loss and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SA’s) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

requited to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.




ment’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
tespect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial pecformance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughour the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an undmtandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in

place and the operating effectivencss of such controls,

e '+ Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
: ‘estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Materiality ¢ the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decistons of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the ["m;mcm.l
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative mnt(:rmlny and .qlmlumivc factors in (i) planning
the scope of out andit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to cvaluate the effect of any
wlennfied misstatements 1 the Financial Statement,
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control that we identify duting our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with 2 statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

\¢ required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A,

<tatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
books except for the matters stated in the paragraph h(vi)

it appears from our examination of those
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
ent of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in

a

{c) The Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statem
agreement with the books of account.

‘d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(")

ance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
der Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph

(f) The modifications relating to the mainten
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting un
h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies

nal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
‘Annexure B’ Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g With respect 1o the adequacy of the inter
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to be lll(’ll,ld(‘d n lhc Auditor’s chf)l'l in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit itor i
B I l ( | and /\.mhtms) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the cxplnmmnns gven to us;

1. The Company has disclose : 7 yath (1o
\l'llL‘H](‘nI(\" 13 lli ld;\':'dm“,l) the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
st sasat’ arch 2025 Refer Note 45 to the financial statements.

1. The Company di . : g
s o pany fd not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any - material foresecable losses as at 31 March 2025

ui. There were s whi :
p .KlL Were no amounts w hich were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
rotection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025

. (a) The Mlnnngcmcnl has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
fro.m borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the undcrsmncfinp,.
\\‘he(hcr. recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representatons
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material

misstatement.
v. The Company has not declared and paid dividend during the year.

As stated in Note 51 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an
accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have feature of recording audut
trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant -
transactions recorded in the softwares except that, the audit trail logs were not enabled for changes
made using privileged access rights for direct data changes at the database level. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with *
other than the consequential impact of the exception given above.

e

V1.

ore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
| retention except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been
the accounting software for the period 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.




0 Wt respect 1o the matter 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197016) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinon and 1o the best of our nformanon and according to the explanations given o us, the
Compans did not pav any temuneration to its directors duning the year.

k Tr Agarwal Prakash & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Farm's Registration No.: 005975N

Aashish K Verma
Partner

Membership No. 527886 0
UDIN 25527886BPOJQJ4173

Place Delhs
Date 27 May 2025




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, based on the audit procedures
performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements of the Company
and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the books of account and
other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

® (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is
,not applicable.

(L) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of the property, plant and equipment is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The Company has no immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order 1s
not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(11) (a) The inventories held by the Company comprise stocks of units in completed projects and
work in progress of the projects under development. Having regard to the nature of the
Inventory, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory by way of
verification of title deeds, site visits conducted, and continuous project progress monitoring
by competent persons at reasonable intervals during the year, and no material discrepancies
were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

(ii1) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based on
verification carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any investments in
or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and Companies. The Company
has granted interest free unsecured loans to companies during the year as below:

(a) During the year, the company has granted interest free unsecured loans to
companies. The Details of the same is given below:

005975N
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(Z. in Hundred)

3 j Loans (Refer Note 13?_

I Particulars
Aggregate amount grmtc(l during the year 2t

Others
Fellow Subsidiaries 3,18,73,500.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Others
Fellow Subsidiaries 1,83,55,300.00

(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has not made any invesuments in or
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsccured to firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and Companies but
has provided unsccured loans to Companies. However, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to Companies at nil interest rate which is lower than the market rate of
interest (refer note 44). In respect of such loans, we have not been provided with
adequate explanation of the benefits, if any, accruing to the Company for giving such
loans, we are unable to comment as to whether the terms and conditions of grant of such

loans, are, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, in respect on loans granted, the schedule of
repayment of principal has been stipulated wherein the principal amounts are repayable
on demand and since the repayment of such loans has not been demanded, in our

opinion, repayment of the principal amount is regular.

(d) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, there is no overdue amount in respect of loans
granted to company. Accordingly, clause 3(iif)(d) of the Order is not applicable

(¢) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, no loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted by the Company which have fallen due during the year, have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same

parties, Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and
based on verification carried out by us, the Company has granted unsecured loans which

are repayable on demand, as per details below:
(X. in Hundred)
Particulars All Parties Promoters | Related Parties
Aggregate of loans
e Repayable on demand ) 1,83,55,300.00 1,83,55,300.00
[ - Agreement does not specify any
ms or period of repayment (B) % - =
: 1,83,55,300.00 . 1,83,55,300.00
100%
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1y According to the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income

I'ax. Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess on

account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of dues Amount Period to | Forum where
statute (in% which the | dispute is
‘ hundred) | amount pending
relates
"The Fance | Service Tax 13,375.23 FY 2011-12 Commissioner
\ct, 1994 (Appeals)
Ihe Central | Credit  of SGST | 4,304.84 FY 2017-18 | Assistant
| Goods & | claimed in Trans- 1 Commissioner,
| Service tax Visakhapatnam
Act, 2017
"The Central | SCN for passing tax | 6,46,062.27 | April 2017 to | Notice issued by
Goods & | benefits to March 2019 DGAP and case 1s
| Service tax | customers (Ant pending with High
Act, 2017 Profitecring) Court, Delhi
| The Central | Credit  of KKC | 1,504.50 Balances as at | Superintendent of
Goods & | claimed in Trans-1 30 June 2017 | central tax, Madhur
Service tax in Trans-1 Wada GST range,
| Act, 2017 Visakhapatnam

to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
d as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
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x)

(x1)

(xi1)

information and

2 According to the records of the Company examined by us and the

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment ol loans or
borrowings and interest thercon payable to any banks and other lenders

not have any botrowings from financial institutions or government,

The Company does

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

mstumnon ot gn\-(‘lllln(‘y" or ﬂ“"““‘"“’”' :\llfh!)r"\',
asis of our audit

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the b
ause 3(x)(c) of

procedures, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, cl
the Order 1s not applicable

d) According to the mformation and explanations given to us, and the procedures pcrfr)rmcd
by s, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
company

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

\ccordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the

Order 1s not applicable.

(a) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based
on verification carried out by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) According to the information, explanation and representation provided to us and based

on verfication carried out by us, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the

year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor

have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable,
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— \ecording to the information and explanations piven to us, and the procedures performed by
1€, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Compantes Act, 20173 with
respect 1o applicable all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
tansactons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
Indian accounting standards (

xn 2} According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act
which s commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b1 The internal andit is performed as per a planned program approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditor for the
penod under andit, 1ssved to the Company till date.

Ly \ccording to the information, explanation and representation pr(n'ldcd to us and based on
venficanon carned out by us, during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi (a) The Company 1s not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable

b The Company 1s not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not

applcable

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not

applicable

(xvi)  The Company has incurred cash losses of % 28,27,178.92 hundred in the current financial year

2024-25 and cash losses of T 5,82,741.29 hundred immediately preceding financial year.

(xvisi) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xx)  According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ranios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilives, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions and subject to the Note no. 53(d) of the financial statements,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
Liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
1o the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
 labiliies falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,
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xt) The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regards ta Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xs) of the Order
1s not applicable.

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 005975N

005975N | #]
New Delhi /&)

Aashish K Verma
Partner

ip No. 527886
UDIN: 25527886BPOJQJ4173

Place: Delhs
Date: 27 May 2025




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report

' : ” » membe the
With reference to the Annexure B referred to in the Independent Auditor's Report to the mc mbers of
Company on the inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 of even date.

Independent Auditot’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3

of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

\' { ¥ i { ial statements . Leal
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of .\unlul Re |
3 : . ; A t . ancia
Estate Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financr;

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring tlinc‘or(lerl)‘
and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as

required under the Act.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and both, issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and

N
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able detail, accurately and farrly

rtain to the mantenance of records that, in reason furly
reasonable assurance

(2) provide
atements in accordance
s of the Company arc

company; and (3)

pr-v(('nhu(w that (1) pe
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial st

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and cxpcndnurc
and directors of the

being made only n accordance with authorisations of management npa i
y i i i H Sl P S1LIc use
'mn'ldr reasonable assurance r(';gnr(hng prevention or Hmcly detection of unnu(hlm.\cd acquisition, '
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
‘ ' . T} 4 ieva ’ 5
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statement
cnts,

Becance of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statem
including  the possibility  of collusion or improper  management override of controls, material
musstatements due to error o fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are sub‘;cC( to the
rsk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or pmccdurcs may

detenorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all matetial respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
wete operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal

control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 005975N

AN
Aashish K Verma
Partner
Membership No. 527886
UDIN: 25527886BPOJQJ4173

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

All amount in ¥ hundred, unless athenwise stated

Balance Sheet as at Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 1541292 16,984.06
(1) Deferred tax assets, net 7 11,177.09 5,23,508.02
(€) Non-current tax asscts, net R 1.20,309.75 1,07,441.58
1,46,899.76 6,47,933.66
Current assets
(a) Inventuges 9 1,56,20,889.60 2.17,27,506.41
(b) Financial Assets
T'rade receivables 10 550.56 17,804.57
Cash and cash equivalents 1 36,262.31 13,966.82
Other bank balances 12 33,927.42 33,933.49
Loans 13 98,63,943.67 2,083.33
Other financial assets 14 5,91,628.10 5,90,128.10
(¢) Other current assets 15 93,388.59 53.628.18
Total of Assets 2,63,87,490.01 2,30,86,984.56

Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 5,000.00 5,000.00
(b) Other equity (1,64.23,158.22) (45,81.290.12)
(1,64,18,158.22) (45,76,290.12)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 17 A 41,600.90 27.622.58
41,600.90 27,622.58
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 2,77,84,350.00 83,17,690.00
Trade payables 19
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprdses 1,01,302.75 8,284.91
Total « ding dues of creditors other than micro and small entecpases 12,02,308.65 13,05,420.15
Other financial liabilities 20 34,582.65 68,183.89
(b) Other current liabilities 21 1,36,39,470.08 1,79.35,475.16
(¢) Provisions 17 B 2,033.20 597.99
4,27,64,047.33 2,76,35,652.10
Total of Equity and Liabilities 2,63,87,490.01 2,30,86,984.56
- yof & ing polici 5
The accompanying notes form an in part of the financial statements
This is the balance sheet refecred to in our report of even date.
For Agarwal Prakash & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Dicectors
Chartered Accountants
Ficm's Registration Number : 005975N
N
Aashish K Verma 005975N Parth Sharma. tmdan Kumar Jha
Partner New Delhi Director Director
Membership Number; 527880 [DIN: 05352029] [DIN: 09643896]
Place: Delhi

Date: 27 May 2025




All amount in € hundred, unless othenvise stated

AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended 31 March
Note 2025 /ﬂ———-
ey 2,329.32
Revenue frm opertions 2 (64,45,825.32 33,4229
Ot ancome 23 35,257.20 _____...2:2‘—"%—-
Total of Revenne 64,81,082.52 ___312;2.’2.45_-
Expenses
Cost of revenue 24
Crvet incuered duang the year 46,43,105.35
D i real estate propert 42,06,616.81
Operating Expenses 16,941.09 88,66,663.25 - 36,54,126.66
Employee benefits expense 25 2,47,646.87 1,87,602.40
Fanance costs 26 40,112.58 =
Diepreciation and amormisation expense 6 2,479.76 2,190.00
D chpeais 27 __ 15284628 L oz ot
Total of Expenses 93=09‘748.74 392‘954.73
Loss before exceptional iters and tax (28.28,666.22) (5,90,209.37)
) items 44 05,581.34) =
Loss before tax and after exceptional items (1,13,24,247.56) (5,90,209.37)
Tax expease 28
Cucrent tax (including eazlier years) 3,887.75 =
Deferred tax charge /(credit), net 5,12,683.74 (2.405.61)
Loss after tax ‘2118,40,819.052 ‘5‘87I803.7Ez
Other comprehensive income
Aﬁlmwwﬂnahuduiﬁed to profit or loss
Re-measusement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (1,401.87) (616.86)
ﬁlmbneudnﬁqmmﬁuwﬂlnmbemdadﬁtdwpmﬁwrlms 352.82 15525
—— ————————
“Total other comprehensive income net of tax (1,049.05) i (461.61)
e > y e v
Total compreheasive income for the year (1,18,41,868.10) ; (5,88,265.37)
equity share 29
(23,681.64) q,ivs.sij i
(1,175.61)

@681.69




ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

quity as at31 March 2025
All amount in T hundred, U_ﬂk__.‘i”_{ﬁff_vi’i:ﬂirﬁi
e unount 1 £ Z
Issue of cquity share Issue of equity share Balance as at
Bal: s at % g
it capital duriog the 31 March 2025

Opening balance
capital during the 31 March 2024 2
perio
b

Sratement of Changes inE

as at
01 April 2023 year
= 5,000.00 ——___-_____'___J

e

(B) Other e uity
Reserves and sumlus Other
Particulars 2 z Comprehensive Total
Retained earnings Income
__________-——-—-_________,___-———________—-———-——‘
(39,83,621.97) (9,402.78) (39,93,024.75)
(5'87,803.76)

Opening balance as at 01 April 2023
Loss for the year g5,87.803.76! -
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - (461.61) (461.61)
alance as at 31 March 2024 (45,7],425.73) (9,864.39) (45,81,290.12)
(1.18.40.819.05) - (1,18,40,819.05)
049.05; ( 1,049.05)

Particulars

Tquity share capital

B

Loss for the year
f defined benefit plans (net of tax) - (1 )
(1,64,12,244.79) (10,913.44) —M

Re-measurement O

|Balance as at 31 March 2025
*Refer Note - 16 for details

The accompanying notes arc integral part of the financial statements

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Agarwal Prakash & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Numbe : 005975N

Aashish K Verma 005975N : Pa'nh Sharma Kund: ar Jha
Director Dicector
[DIN: 09643896]

Panner
P New Delhi
Membesship Number: 527886 [DIN: 05352029)

Place: Delhi
Date: 27 May 2025



ATEMID REAL BSTATE LIMITED

All amoune In € hundred, unless atlhervise st

ared

Sratmmrrn o C ook Plees G the

Year ended 31 March

2025

2024

A Comeh Rom Toner npesssing sothoivies

Veliine fnerome tuy oy e vrue

Adbsrememts 10 seenncile net Ioes tn et cxvh provided hy operating activitien:

pern ryyym mm e Pma e PTPETTRE

s worirten ofF ol peopessr plant agupment & other mmangible ascets

» eile
R e R |
. merme rve Fiend dnpvery

D e e s s Readteat]

rarwrras v deee covspvrtate depaeiny
sragwines! inetn

{ gmrrirrnenty oo pmotyel fumde mer
b

w dehertigers

T et fr1e gratirs and comnpenaed shernces
Oipernting loee helfose working capital changes and other adjustments
Chanps 1w nr p nensre mod hahilin

wrvrmer o bnmrss fimancl et and nther secets

cr e vy

eerase) m trade secrevabdes

o i tende purabiles

D herwegar pr cotbyes habiiltses pnel pooesesme
Coah partl in nperarting sctivitice

e tme pefund reorreed (pand), net

Net canh waed in oprrating sctivities

B Cash flow fenm imvesnng activities:
Puschsse of propens, plant equipment & other mtangible assets
rporate loans and advances grven

rbrane of wrvemrenent w rarual funds
Pyserrds feom sale of mrestments m mutual funds
[ J—— S I
Net canh uned in mvesting activities

C Cunh Now from Ginancing activities (Fefer pate - 50):

“ro

Proceeds from mues componte deposits

Repayment of miter corporate quvnm
Proscwnds Trom waue 1o non convernble debentures

Faparment of nom convernble debentures
Iaterest pas! on non convernble debentures
Interest paed on mter-cotporate deposity

Net cush genersted from financing activitics

Net incresse [ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents, net (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the begmnming of the year
Cush snd cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E)

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equavalents includes
Cash on hand
Balances with scheduled banks
In current accounts
Towal of Cash and cash equivalents

The socompanying notes fomm an integral part of the financial statements.

Ther w the satement of cash flows referred w in our report of even date

For Agarwad Prakash & Co.

Parth Sharma
Director
[DIN: 05352029|

(1,13,24,247 56)

(5.90.219.37)

2479.76 2,190.00
5574 3,931.51
(450.16) (1,346.57)
2211.39) 12,051.20)
(2N N7251) -
A0,1100,00
24,095,581 34
(12,221.13)
103.00
9.58
2,89.35 =
14,528 41 6247.67
(28,04,357.53) (5,81,237.96)
(45,791.44) (21,195.62)
61,06,61681 10,71,814.55
17,254.01 (17,804.57)
(9,643.51) (78,805.91)
43,.30,123.00 15,58,025.64)
(10,66,044.71) (11,85,255.15)
3,513.59 (37352.78)
10, 3112 (12,22,607.93)
(964.40) (10,242.28)
(1,83,55,300.00) -
(1,84,77,260.00)
1,84,89,483.13 -
221746 1,999.52

1,83,41,823.81

—__anig

2,45,83,190.00 26,00,400.00
(1,38,16,530.00) (14,21,500.00)
1,85,00,000.00 -
(98,00,000.00) 2
(©.58) -
(40,000.00) -
—1,942665042  ___ 11,78,900.00
22,295.49 (51,950.69)
A RRRAY 65.917.51
36,26231 13,966.82
13,966.82

3626231
w.}l

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

[an Rumar Jha
Director
[DIN: 09643896]

—_—
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED h
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Marc

2025

Nature of principal activities

\irmid Real Estate Limited (“the Company”) having CIN: U45400DL2007PLC163165 was incorporated on 09 May
2007 and is engaged in the business of real estate and other related and ancillary activities. The Company 15 ‘dﬂmlC'lc‘l
in India and its registered office is situated at Office No. 202, 2" Floor, A-18, Rama House, Middle Circle, Connaught

Place, New Delhi- 110001,

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS !
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards. as
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) - read with the Companies (lndmn_ .t\ccounllﬂg
Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA"), as amended and other relevant provisions of the

\ct
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’ or ') which is the functional currency of the Company

and all values are rounded to the nearest hundreds, except where otherwise indicated.
Entiny speaific disclosure of material accounting policies where Ind AS permits options is disclosed hereunder.

The Company has assessed the materality of the accounting policy information which involves exercising judgem'cms
and considering both qualitative and quantitative factors by taking into account not only the size and nature of the item
or condition but also the characteristics of the transactions, events or conditions that could make the information more
likely to impact the decisions of the users of the financial statements.

Entity's conclusion that an accounting policy is immaterial does not affect the disclosures requirements set out in the

accounting standards.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting Standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
27 May 2025. The revisions to the financial statements are permitted by the Board of Directors after

Directors on 27
obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Recent accounting pronouncements:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2025,
MCA notified new accounting standard Ind AS 117- Insurance Contracts, which has no impact on the company
financial statements. Further the MCA has made certain amendments to Ind AS 116- Leases, in particularly related to
sale and lease back transactions, which has an applicability from 1 April 2024, and has no significant impact on financial

statements.

On 7 May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These
2mendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when
currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain
finzncial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measure at fair values as explained in
selevant accounting policies, Fair valuations related to financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into level 1,
level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

:

Summary of material accounting policies

The ﬁnanazl statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below, These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements.

R
005976N

New Delhi




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2025

5.1 Current versus non-current classification

I nesers and halalites have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
ets and

thet cotena set out i Companies Act 2013, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current ass

non-curtent liabilities, as the case may be.

5.2 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when control is transferred and is accounted net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the

revenue recognition ctitetia to each nature of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Rerwmaer frome sair of properiies

Revenue from sale of properties is recognized when the performance obligations are essentially complete. The
performance obligations are considered to be complete when the property is ready to be transferred to the buyer
occupancy certificate received from the issuing authority) ie. offer for possession can be issued to the buyers by
1=suing the possession request letter.

rms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction
deration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange

ollected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect
lude fixed consideration, variable

The Company considers the te
poce The transaction prce is the amount of consi
for transfemng property to a customet, excluding amounts ¢
taxes) The consideration promised in a contract with a customer may inc
conmderation (if reversal is less likely in future), or both.

the Company determines at contract inception whether it satisfies the

+formance obligation over time or satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time. If an entity does not satisfy
the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time. A receivable is recognised
ecognition where consideration is

For each performance obligation identified,

pe

a performance obligation over time,
by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time r

unconditional because only the passage of time is required.
When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract
ssset or 4 contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s

payment.
ed in the perod such

The costs estimates are reviewed periodically and effect of any change in such estimate is recogniz
when the total estimated cost exceeds total expected revenues from the contracts,

changes are determined. However,
the loss is recognized immediately.

Revene from sale of land
Revenue from sale of land is recognised in the year in which the underlying agreements are executed and there exists no
uncertainty in the ultimate collection of consideration from buyer.

Interest income
Intesest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Service ancome
Intesest on delayed receipts, cancellation/forfeiture income and transfer fees from customers are recognized on accrual
basis except in cases where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

5.3 Propenty, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost
butable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the

if capitalization crtena are met and directly atte
intended use, Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that

included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred,

006976N
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2025

Subseguent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of
useful lives (as set out below) prescrbed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.
Asset class Useful life
Bulding — tempomry structure 3 years
Plant and equipment 12 - 15 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Fumiture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8§ years
The residnal values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
De-recognition
nised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future

de-recognition of the asset

\n stem of property, plant and equipment initially recog
f the asset) is recognised in

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
\caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 0

ctatement of profit and loss when the asset is derccognised.

Any gain or loss arising on

5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

ation that an asset may be impaired, based on

¢, the Company assesses whether there is any indic
stimates the recoverable amount of the asset or

At each reporting dat
h generating unit to which the asset belongs is

intemal or external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company e
ash generating unit. If such recoverable amount of the asset or cas

ing amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an

ing date there is an indication that

smpairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reportin
a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at

the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit

the ¢
Jess than its carrying amount, the cartyi

and loss.

5.5 Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost — A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the

following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows; and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Mutual funds ~ All mutual funds in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit and loss

(FVTPL),




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED h
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Marc

2025

De-recopnition of financial assels 3
e = ‘ . : 255 e expired or the

A financial asset is pamarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have exp

Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Reygnition and Initial measurement — amortised cost . . I
action cost that is attributable to the acquisition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and trans

the financial liabilities is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement — Amortised cost y . Eosie iateeeat
Subsequent to initial measurement, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective mnte

method.

Revgrition, initial and subsequent measurement — fair value _ e
A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL) if it is designated as such upon initial
recognition. Finandial liabilities at FVIPL are measured (initial and subsequent) at fair value and net gains/losses,
including any interest expense are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
ther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
d, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

De-recognition q/:ﬁlmm'fa/ labilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when t
an existing financial liablity is replaced by ano
of an existing liability are substantially modifie
the orginal liability and the recognition of a new
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

he obligation under the

Offsetting of financial instruments
e net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and th
d there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts an
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

5.6 Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. The Company factors historical trends and forward looking
information to assess expected credit losses associated with its assets and impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade recetvables
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires

measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other finanaal assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal
10 d'ne lifetime cxp'ectcd credit losses. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, if the financial asset is determined to hayve low credit nisk at the balance sheet date.

5.7 Inventories

L:lnd other than that transferred to real estate properties under development is valued at lower of cost or net realizable
value,




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED |
Summary of material accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March
2025

internal and

Real estate properties (developed and under development) includes cost of land under development, s
and relatec

external development costs, construction costs, and development/construction materials, borrowing costs
overhead costs and 1s valued at lower of cost or net realizable value,

' : : ta stion
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completi

and estimated costs of necessary to make the sale.
5.8 Employee bencefits

Defined contrilbution plan :
The Company's contribution to provident fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss or mvcntogzcd as a part
of real estate project under development, as the case may be. The Company’s contributions towards provident fund are

deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner under a defined contribution plan.

Defined benefit plan : -

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined bencfit plan where the amount that an emplqyee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The liability recognised in f.hc
balance sheet for defined benefit plans as the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) at the reporting
date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuaral gains/losses

resulting from re-mensurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long -term
employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be availed more
than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuadal valuation performed by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuadal gains and losses ansing
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recorded in the statement of profit and loss in

the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprse of employee costs such as salades, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the

amount paid or payable for the perod during which services are rendered by the employee.
5.9 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time

value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
® Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or

¢  Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
1o settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related
asset is recognized.

5.10 Significant management judgement and estimates in applying accounting policies

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the related disclosures.

RN
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory info

2025

rmation for the year ended 31 March

Significant management  Judgements

gnized is based on an

ax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be reco
d tax assets can be

Recognition of deferred t
y of the Company’s future taxable income against which the deferre

assessment of the probabilit
utilized.
indicators of impairment of

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assects — The evaluation of applicability of
deterioration of recoverable

assets requires assessment of several extemnal and internal factors which could result in
amount of the assets,

storical default rates observed over

ceivables — At each balance sheet date, based on hi
ables and advances.

Recoverability of advances/re
he expected credit losses on outstanding receiy

expected life, the management assesses t

agement judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the

Provisions — At cach balance sheet date basis the man
he outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual

Company assesses the requirement of provisions against t
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

ind total budgeted cost i.e. outcomes of underlying construction and

Revenue and inventories — The estimates arou
be made on changes in work scopes, claims and

cervice contracts, which further require assessments and judgements to
other payments to the extent they are probable and they are capable of being reliably measured. For the purpose of

making estimates for claims, the Company used the available contractual and historical information. The estimates of
the saleable area are also reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in such estimates is recognised in the period

such changes ate determined.

estimate of the useful lives of

Useful lives of depxeciablc/amoﬂisable assets — Management reviews its
of the assets. Uncertainties in these

deprcciablc/amonisablc assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utlity
estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial

Fair value measurements — Management applies
vailable). This involves developing estimates and assumptions

instruments (where active market quotes are not a
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
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(i) Capitalization of borrowing cost on PPE

aey
NO Dorrow

AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policics

and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in ¥ hundred, unless otherwise stated

Note -6
Property, plant and equipment
Building Plant and machinery  Office equipment Computers Furniture and fixtures Total
Gross carrying amount
At 01 Apal 2023 8,568.21 15,896.95 4,662.46 3,779.33 1,750.74 34,657.69
Additions x 9,475.40 2 766.88 - 10,242.28
Disposals/assets watten off (8,508.21) (5,287.55) (2,829.12) (2,371.15) (1,012.74) (20,068.77)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 20,084.80 1,833.34 2,175.06 738.00 24,831.20
Addinons - 563.20 - 401.20 964.40
Disposals/asscts watten off - - - (60.18) (60.18)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 20,084.80 2,396.54 2,175.06 1,079.02 25,735.42
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 Apnl 2023 8,568.21 6,162.51 3,176.35 3,002.87 884.46 21,794.40
Charge for the year - 1,164.69 366.67 484.03 174.61 2,190.00
Adjustments for disposals (8.568.21) (1,687.61) (2,829.12) (2.371.15) (681.17) (16,137.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - 5,639.59 713.90 1,115.75 377.90 7,847.14
Charge for the penod - 1,338.99 459.25 57837 103.15 2,479.76
Adjustments for disposals = - = s (4.40) (4.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - 6,978.58 1,173.15 1,694.12 476.65 10,322.50
Net ﬁba.w.:h valuc as at 31 March 2024 - 14,445.21 1,119.44 1,059.31 360.10 16,984.06
Net carrving value as at 31 March 2025 - 13,106.22 1,223.39 480.94 602.37 15,412.92

PPE pledged as sccurity

Property, plant and cquipment have not been pledged as secunty for _52::.57.?

cost has been capatalized on property, plant

and equipment.

poihl
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2025

31 March 2025

All amaunt In € hundred, unless othervise stared

Asat
31 March 2024

As at

Note .7
Deferred tax 15, net
Deferred tax assets/(labilities) arising on account of ;
Provision of emplayee benefits 10,981 83 6,94730
Ind AS 115 effect on reversal 4 5,16217.93
Property, plant and equipment and intanpble asses 195.26
11,177.09
Caption wise movement in deferred tax as follows:
Particulars 01 April 2023 Recognised/ Recognised/ 31 March 2024
(reversed) in (reversed) in
other profic and loss
comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax assets/ (Uabilities) arising on:
Provison of employee benefirs 5,258.14 155.25 153391 6,947.30
Margn reversal on adoption of Ind AS 115 51621793 . - 5,16217.93
Property, plant and equipment and ble asscts (528,92 - 57171 279
5,20,947.15 155.25 2,405.62 5,23,508.02
Particulars 31 March 2024 Recognised/ Recognised/ 31 March 2025
(reversed) In (reversed) in
other profit and loss
comprehensive
income
Defesred tax assew/ (Labilities) arising on:
Provuion of employee benefits 6,947.30 35282 368171 10,951.83
Margin reversal on adoption of Ind AS 115 5,16,217.93 - (5,16,217.93) -
Property, plant and equipment and intangble assets 3279 - (147.52) 19526
5,23,508.02 352.82 (5,12,683.75) 11,177.10

The Company has decided to restrict recognition of Deferred Tax Assets on beought forward losses to the extent there is convincing evidence which demonstrate probability of realisation of
deferred tax assets in near future. The company has unabsorbed business losses of € 63,27,593.57 hundred (31 March 2024: ¥35,19,589.60 hundred ) on which no Deferred Tax Assers s

created.

Note - 8
Non-cusrent tax assets, net
Advance income tax, including tax deducted at source

Note -9
loventories

A Real estate prop
Cost of propernes under development
Less: Transferred to developed prog

ies- under devel at cost

B Real cstate propertics - developed (at cost)
Cost of developed properties
Less: Cost of revenue recognized nll date

C Construction materials in stock, at cost
Total(A+B+C)
Less: Prowision for future esuimated cost
Note - 10
Trade receivables®

(Unsecured, Considered good)
Considered good

1,07.441.58

10744158

2942771343 24845581579
1.75.08,828.18 T1.6347278
1,19,18,885.25 1,70,82,343.01
1,75,08 828.18 T7,63.472.78
124, 83 36,54,126.66
50,60,228.35 41,09,346.12
5,41,776.00 5,35,817.28
1,75,20,889.60 2,17,27,506.41

19.00.000.00 -

m.m.m 17, Al

55056 _1BeasT
550.56 17,804.57

* The Company does not have any trade receivables which are cither credit impaired or where there is significant increase in credit sk




ATRMID R CTATE LIMITED
D REAL ESTA Al amount In € hundred, unlese adhervise atated
np poticies snd orher explanarory information for the year ended 31 Mareh 2028
As at
Anat
31 March 2023 I March 2024
Toral

2-Jyears

£ o | mee

More than J years

As mt 31 Mareh M2
Particrince Lews than & manthe £ monthe to | 1«2 year
year

LSAT] 28\58

550.56

Uniliapueed] tradle receiviiiion 19964
Ll S

! regds pecmer b

W e

eridernd Aoy bobigd Fleemg mgn
e
B T e e N P B
g greme]

R T e p———

R
v Dwpuresd wede srererable  commicdesad
it Fleving sgnificart vreme iv

“i Thapurend seade sncmivadilee  rrede

ot

2-3 years More than 3 years Total

As ¢ 31 Masch 2024

I Pamiculare Less than 6 months 6 months to | 1-2years
year

162 17,6004.95 - . - 17,80M.57

|71 ndbegneredd svnde smcereybiies
Pl o]
N s T O
crmribeeedd doaihosiyl Thaemp eyrdicant
e = rmk,
= Undwputed srade severrables - credit
rpasred
R e )
e
v Dlsaparteed ke rererables - conesdered

boughoeial (Havng sgnificant morease in

—~

1 Dimpuereed trade receevables - credin

g
b &

Now - 11
Cash and canh equivalents
anh ot hand -
Balances with banks
36,2231 —1es2

I current serount
36,262.31 13,966.82

Now - 12

Other bank balances

Bank deposier”

With matunty of more than theee months and upto rwelve months 33,57446 3357446

Interent sccnaed on bank deposm 352.96 359.03

33,927.42 33,

Btk deponin (exchiding scorued wterest) of T 3357446 hundeed (31 March 2024: T 33,574.46 hundred) have been pledged with bank to provide guarantee in favor of Fire Service

Leparnment and Gevarer Visakhag M | Corp

Nowe - 13

Losas - current

Lt bl dered good - d

nser corporate boans 10 related parties (refer note 44)° 98,59,718.66 -

Lo teceivables - credit impaired

Loswer womporate koaos 1o related parties (refer note 44)* 84.95,581.34 A
1,83,55,300.00 -

Less: Prowssions fur umpasement of loans (expected credit loss) (84,95,581.34)
4.22501 2,083.33

Laswss 0, exrgployees 225
943,67 2,083.33

36,752.99

—i L0

Piegund capinses
Selenca with
T Prowwsms i densbontul Balwnss with) statintiony suthontes

* Whe Company bas provided wtesent fiee inter cotporate deposits w its related parties. The inter corporate deposits are re| le on demand.
Nose - 14
Cnhes fnancial sssets - current
(U neecnsed - considesed goods)
teziverey degrasts 5.91,628.10 5,90,128.10
5,91,628.10 5,0,128.10
PNone - 15 v
Fothaes curicnnt aaseis
bscimied cunsidescd goud)
Advaiein b svafl 850,00 305.8)
R T 357678 25,622.69
Advstica v atndd o bervne provilden J6,107.39 227828
7,023,038 -
Aaia8
-
———
—SE




ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Al amount In € Nundred, unlest ntherwiee stared

Summury of materis! sccomnting palicies and ather explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2028

Asat As ot
I1 Mareh 2028 31 Mareh 2024
LN 2727 . —
Nowe < 16
Fguity ahere capital
i Awthocised Number Amount Number Amaunt
Figuey share capast of fice waloe of ¥ 10 each 40,000 3.000.00 30,000 3,000.00
20,000 $,000.00 30,000 5,000.00
i Yewned, enbeceived and fully paid op Number Amount Number Amount
Fauey share capal of face wabae of € 10 exch fully pod op 50,000 3,000 00 50,000 3,000.00
50,000 $,000.00 50,000 $,000.00
W Meconcilistinn of mumber and amewnt of equity shares ovtstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Buyulty shares Number Amount Number Amount
Balance a1 the hegmmning of the yrar 50,000 5,000.00 50,000 5,000.00
AAA Terurd demmg the yeur 2 5
Lesn Rederened dunng the year < - -
Balance ot the end of the year ”IM 5,000,00 50,000 3,000.00
r Righe, p and hed 10 equiry shares
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. fn the event of liquidation of
tstanding 2 on

The holdess of squity shares a0 entitled 1o recerve drrdends as declared from time ro nme,

she Company, the reenaining amets of the Company shall be durmbuted to the holders of equity shares in propartion the number of shares held 10 the total equity shares oul

vhat dare Al shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s resxdual assets
* SN (previous pear 50,000) equity shares of the Company s held by holding company namely Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India Developments Lirmited
anndd enbeer Indisbnills Rlesl Extase Liveed) nd s nomances from 27 March 2024

+i Demils of shareholder holding more than 5% share capital
Name of the equity shareholder Number of shares Number of shares
50,000 50,000

Esmbaser Developments Limited (Formerly known a Equinox Inda Developments
Limwsed and sarher Indsbulls Real Estare Limited) and its nominees w.e f. 27 March
2024

vii Disclosure of Sharcholding of Promorers
Discdosurs of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2025 is as follows:

Share Held by Promoters
As at 31 March 2024
% Total of Shares % Change during the year

Promotes Name

As at 31 March 2025
Number of shares | % Total of Shares | Number of
shares

100 50,000 100 -

Ermbassy Developments Limited 000
Frrmesly known as Equinox Indu
Developments Lirmweed and earlier
Indubulls Real Estate Limted) and its

|nomnees wel 27 March 2024
Toul 50,000 100 50,000 100 -

Ducdomure of shareholding of promoters as at 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Promoter Name

Share Held by Promoters

As ac 31 March 2023
% Total of Shares % Change during the year

As at 31 March 2024
Number of sbares | % Total of Shares | Number of
shares

50,000 100 - - 100.00%

Embany Developments Lirnited
(Formerly known as Equinox Inda
Developments Limated and earlier
Indubulls Real Estate Limited) and its
nomunees wef. 27 March 2024

Lonta Devedopens Limited (including ‘. 2 50,000 100 -100.00%

nomunee shares)
| Total 50,000 100 50,000 100 -
did not buy back any shares during immediately preceding

dises ot have any shares issued for consideration other than cash during the immediately preceding five years. Company

will Company
five years.

Note - 17
A Provisioos - non-curtent (rfer note - 46)
Provaion for employee benefits:
26,431.61 20,411.30
15,169.29 721128

Campensated abrences
MIGMN 2 7Im53

B Provislons - current (nfer aole - 46)

Provision for employee benefity;
1,408.12 433.67
16432

597.99

Grawity
Compenvated sbsences
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AIRMID BEAL FETATE LIMITED
W wemenne fn € hundred, unfess atherwiee srated

§ pebicies end sihes pxplanseary infarmarion for the year ended 11 Mareh 2028

e ot
Anat Aw ar
I March 2025 I Murch 2024
N . 10
L VP —
R — S——
£ 70 A N1 Masch MO0 N DT N el debennsres of Face value of €10 each to A7,00,000 00 -
Fiamhmeny Diresbrpmerss | grveed Fremesty Fgumoy Indn Developenenn Limwed wrd earher Indvabulle
L e Ea
PR
—
47,00,000.00 -
1 memcrre—g buaee
U S—— - i 1,90 44,350 00 #3,17,690 00
e et
1,00,84,150.00 83,17,670.00
— e —
—_—
—_—
bﬂa!asﬂ.ml 43 17|cm.m

debennires (NCDy) of fice valie of T 10 each, bearing interest rate 4F 0.0001% per annum with
Il as investoe. The company has redeemed it

Dhssimg the seae snidedd 3 Masch 2025, the company has treoed 18,30,M,000 non convernble
10 pmes Eertms the thare oof wmsance. These debemtuses are redeemable snynime befiore the expiry of 10 years ot the apnon of weuer as wel

g reeremdmg WO T aggeegeng ¢ UGN 00 10 humdeede on 31 Jan 2025,
P ——————— Y =0 DR TR P P wil) and reparsble on demand

Noee - 19
Trndde porubies . corren
Dhee v momer and el entveprnes 1,01.302.75 8,284.91
These ¢ them 4,11,032.99 5,44, 383.96
Porwrrteren mones 7,91,268.66 7.6 é 6.19
D, T
Trade Pavubics apeing schedule
Ar wr M March 2023
r Particulars Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
U MEMT 3 1,01,30275 3 - - 1,01,302.75
W Oohen than MEME 791,208 64 3,96,193.62 1),697.75 79.98 1,068.63 12,02,308.64
) Drspaetest dues - MEMT a 2 2 S s S
! Dhmpurtesd dhaes - Otiver than MSME - = - - - =
As mt 3 March 2024
Parvculars Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
i MSME 2,00567 823401 - - - 31,300.38
& Orbher than MEMI 7,37,520.52 54373535 79.98 - 1,068.63 12,82,404.48
! Drapured dues - MEME - ke 2 5 o 2
) Dhapsted duues - Osher than MSME > = = - = S
by wnder the Micro, Small and Medum Enterprses Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act, 20067) as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:
r 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Particulars ®) ®
(| pesscapal amount and the irerest due thereon remaining unpad (o any supplicr a3 at the end of each accounting year; 1,01,302.75 828491
W |Jeserent due thereon on (4 Nil Nil
The armownt of interest pad by the buyee in terms of section 16, “slong with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 2 2
-, Nil Nil
duy dunmg cach sccounting year,
i ot srmnant ol mimret due and payable for the penad of delay n making payment (which have been pald but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
‘ mwmw-&,dunw-pmﬁdmdudmkc > i
v e ot of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and Nil Nil
e aesonarst of further inmerest remaining due and payabile even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as above are actually Nil Nil
- ot 01 the small entorpeise, for the purpose of disallowance as # deductible expenditure under section 23.
d 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

The abswe mformaton eegarding Micro, Semall and Medwm Enterp has been d
Camnpamry
Note - 20
taes current financial Uabilides
Acirsed conphayee Lenefin 34,582.65 66.16
Fapenics payatie
ftters - 68,1 17.73
M&ﬂ 5!&109
Now -2
Othues cunmesnt baldlivies
Adeance feun Gasvassen 1,30,48,818.57 1,73,44,089.01
Provvuscs aganat scity depost 5,75,000.00 5,75,000.00
Payatibe 100 atatatiny sithintues 15,651.51 16,386.15
aﬂm hﬂa‘ﬁ.l‘

005076N
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summany of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Nove - 22

Revenne from operations

Rewnme from weal estarr project under development
Interest meome on overdoe balances

Income from recoverns on ene

Servwce recepn

Nowe .23

Othet income

Toverret e ome on freed depaets

Interrst soome on woome tax refuod
Pahnce worten back

Profit on emdempoin of munsal funds, (oey)
Muscellaneous Income

Note - M
Cowt of revenue
Cont meurred dunng the year

Tocrease) decrease i real estate projeet under development

Openmg stock
Closmg stock
Operanng Expenses

Note - 25

Emploree benefits expense

Salanes and wages

Crentusty and leave encathment (rfer Natr - 46)
Contbuton to provident fund and other funds

Soff wrlfare cxpenses

Note - 26
Finance costs

Interest expense on mter-corporate deposits from others

Interest expenses on taraton
Inserest expense on debentures

Note - 27
Other expenses
Bank charprs
Bad debts wntten off
Auditor’s remunegation- as audtor (rfer mate (i) belos)
Audut fees
Communicanon expenscs
Couveyance expenses
Legal expenses
Profcsmonal expenses
Lows on sale or wnitten off of fixed assets
Hates a0d tazes
Ment expenses
Brukeragr and mark p
Subscoption fees
Travehog cxpenses
Muscellaneous expenses
Business suppon expenses

(i) Details of Auditor's remuneration
Audiods remuneration
Auodu fee

For the year ended
31 March 2025

All amount I € hundred, unless othenvise wrared

For the year ended

31 March 2024

@

63,20,622.59

@®

31,98 284.94

7300457 1.04,535.35
14,005.93 28,906.55
8,162.23 6,60248
64,45,325.32 33,42,329.32
2211.39 2,051.20
20,372.51 8.78
45016 1,346.57
1222313 -
0.01 9.49
35,257.20 3,416.04
46,43,105.35 29,00,958.62
2,17,27,506.41 2,24,80,674.45
(1,75,20,889.60) (2,17.27,506.41)
16.941.09 s
88,60,663.25 36,54,126.66
228,338.02 1,80,988.91
14,528.41 6247.67
4,780.44 347.53
- 18.29
2,47,646,87 1,87,602.40
40,000.00 =
103.00 5
0.58
40,112.58 =
59.25 41843
2,389.35 -
12,980.00 1,416.00
BB.56 23375
829.62 41844
12,626.00 4,720.00
2329.50 7,307,00
55.78 3.931.51
5,898.53 25.18
6,185.52 6,01632
160.00 455.02
= 83.78
10,638.81 5,297.62
33247 57.62
98,272.89 61,655.00
1,52,846.28 92,035.67
12,980.00 1,416.00
12,980.00 1,416.00




lred, unless othervise srated

AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Al amonnt in € hund
Summary of material acconmting policles and other explanatory (nformation for the year ended 31 March 2025
Por the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(4]
Note - 28
Income tax
Tax expense comprives oft
Current tan (mchadmg eathee years) 348775 -
Deferred tax charpe /(credd) 5,12,683.74 (2405.01
5,16,571.49 (2,405.61)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
eate of the Campany at 25 168% (31

The magoe components of meome tae expense and the reconcilation of expected tax expense based on the domestc effective ax
251684 and the reported tax expense i profit of koss are as follows:

March 202

Reconcilistion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
Aceounting b before tas (1,13,24,247.56) (5.90.209.37)
Accounting lose before income tax (1,13,24,247.56) (5,90,209.37)
At Incha's starutory mncome tas fate 25.168%% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense (28,50,086.63) (1,48,543.89)
Tax effect of amounts which are nol deductible (taxable) in calculating taxablc i g
Tax impact of expenses whaeh wall never be allowed 21,38,167.91 -
Tax mnpact of unrecogmsed deferred tax on unabsorbed losses 7,11,460.12 1,46,099.77
Ohthers 458.60 244412
Deferred tax charge /(credu) 5,12,683.74 (2,405.61)
Adpustment of tax relanng to eacher penods 3,887.75 -
Income 1ax expense 5,16,571.49 (2,405.61)
Note - 29
Eamings per share (EPS)

& determined based on the net peofit attrbutable to the shareholders. Basic eamnings per share is computed using the

The Company's Eamings per share ("EPS7)
weaghted avemge number of shares outsanding dunng the year. Diluted carnings per shace 1 computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutve
common equvalent shares outstanding dunng the year including share options, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
(5,87,803.76)

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (1,18,40,819.05)
Profit/(loss) atiributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (1,18,40,819.05) (5,87,803.76)
50,000 50,000

Weghted average number of Equity shares for basic / diuted EPS®

*No transactoon w there which have impacted the ealculation of weighted average numbee of shares. No other transaction mvolving Equity shares or potental Equity
shares 1 there between the reporting date and the date of authonsation of thesc financal statements,

Eamings per equity share (for continuing operation):
(1) Dasc (¥) (23,681.64) (1,175.61)
@ Diluted (%) (23,681.64) 1,175.61)

005975N
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ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

5 g ik
ummary of matenal sccounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025

Now - 30
A)  Financial Instrumente by caregon
For amortised coet instruments, carryi

valve represents the best estimate of fair value.

All amount In T hundred, unless otherwise stated

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

FVIPL
(See note 1 below)

FVoCt
(See note 2 below)

Amortised cost

FVTPL
(See note 1 helow)

FVOCI Amortised cost

(See note 2 below)

Financial aecere

Trade recervables 550.56 s » 17,804.57
Cash and oash egqurvalents - 36,262.31 . : 13,966.82
Orther fmanca! assees 5,91,628.10 - - 5,90,128.10
Loans® . 98,63,943.67 - - 2,083.33
Utther bank balanees - 33,927.42 - - 3393349
T otal financial asects - - 1,05,26,312.06 - - 6,57,916.31

net of mparements

Nowes

Thewe fmancnl assets are mandarorly measured at fair value through profit and loss.

2 Thew financal sssets sepresent investments in equity instruments designated as such upon initial recognition.

{ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
| FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVIPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Fimancial babilities
Bosrowngs (mcluding interest accrued - - 2,77,84,350.00 - - 83,17,690.00
Teade payubles - - 13,03,611.40 - - 13,13,705.06
{Mher Grancm! babilities - - 34,582.65 - - 68,183.89
Total financial habilitues - - | 2,91,22,544.05 - - 96,99,578.95
B Faw value messurements
(0 Faar vabue hicearchy

Froamensl asets and fnancial labilites measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierar

o defined based om the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Laewel 1 guosed prices (unadpusted) in active markets for financial instruments,
Lawed 2 The (e value of finanasl instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techaiq
marhes duata wdy as lintle a5 possible on enuty speafic estimates.
Lwel 8 11 e o more of the sgnificant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Commpany docs ot have any

4
ot am

d cost

(i) Fimancial instr

Famancdl sstraments messured at amorused cost for whic

\

b the carrying value is the fair value.

chy. The three Levels

which the use of observable

financial asscts and financial Liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value so no analysis has been shown for faic value
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Ma

A

a)

rch 2025
All amount in € hundred, unle

Note - 31

Financial sk management
of dicectors has overall respansibility for est

The Company’s activities expose it 1o market nsk, liquidity rsk and eredit risk. The € ompany's board 4
sed 1o and how the entity manages the ¢

of Company's rek management famewark. Thie note explaing the sources of risk which the entity is expe

the financial statements

Credit risk
Credit sk i the rk that a counterparty fale to discharge its obligation to the Company ‘The Company's
1 cost. The Company continuously

exposure o credit risk is influenced

omers and other
equrvalents, trade recetvables and finanenl assets measurecl At amortised manitors defaults of custor

menporstes thes mformabon into fts credit nsk contmls

Credit risk management

Coredit rivk rating
The Company assesses and manages credit nsk of financial assets based on following catcgonics arrived on the basis of assumptions,

clase of financial acsers
A Low credit rsk

N Moderate credit nsk
C High credit nsk

s othenvive stated

ablishment and aversight
isk and related impact in

| mainly by cath and cash

counterparncs and

inputs and factors specific to the

Asscts under credit risk —

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
A Terade Recervables 550.56 17,804.57
A Cach and Cash Equivalents 36,262.31 13,966.82
A Other bank balances 33,927 42 33,933.49
A Other financial assets 5,91,628.10 5,90,128.10
A Loans 98,63,943.67 2,083.33
c Loans 84,95,581.34 -

The mk parameters are same for all financial assets for all penod presente
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going
considenng the business envirormment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors

Proviaon for expected oredit forses
Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for 12 month expected credit losses for following financial asscts —

d. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
basis throughout cach reporting period. In general, definition of default is determined by

As at 31 March 2025
Particulars Estimated Expected credit Carrying amount
gross losses netof
carrying impairment
amount provision
Trade Recorvables 550,56 550.56
Cash and cash equivalents 36,262.31 36,262.31
Other bank balances 33,927.42 33,927.42
Other financial assets 5,91,628.10 - 5,91,628.10
Loans 1,83,59,525.01 84,95,581.34 98,63,943.67
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Estimated Expected credit |Carrying amount
gross losses net of
carrying impairment
amount provision
Teade Reccivables 17,804.57 17,804.57
Cash and cash equivalents 13,966.82 - 13,966.82
Other bank balances 5,90,128.10 5,90,128.10
(Other financial asscts 2,083.33 2,083.33
Loans 33,933.49 - 33,933.49

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
The Company’s trade receivables does not have any expected credit loss as registry of propertics sold is generally camied out once the Company
payment. Dunng the perods presented, the Company made no write-offs of trade receivables and no recoveries from receivables peeviously watten off.

i+t bl

Reconciliation of loss pi = wade recei

receives the entire

Ihcondlluion of loss ullowance

Trade
receivables

Loss allowance as on 1 April 2023

Impmrment loss recognised/ reversed duning the year

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024

I loss J/ d dunng the year

lAJu allowance on ;l March 2025

005975N
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i)

Convatration of fimansal acets
. ‘ : . ot real
The Company's prineipal Wisiness activities are development of real estate projects and all other related activities The Company's outstanding cecervables are fo

et v
e progect. Loans and other financnl statements majorly represents inter-company lonns and other advances
Liquidity riek

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated fmm nperations, The Company has no autsrandinig bank
borrowings. The Company believes that the working eapital i sufficient to meet its current requirements, Company also have an option to arfange funds by taking loans
and borrowmg from Holdmg ( ompany/Ulmate Holding Compang/Fellow Subsidiary Company, Accordingly no liguidity rsk is being perceived.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below amalyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non it ﬁm"cu" e
The amounts disclosed m the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their earrying balances as the impsct of discounting
1 g ficant.

31 March 2025 Less than 1 year| Between | | Between | and | Between 3 and More than 4 years Total

and 2 years 2 years 4 years
Non-derivatives
Botrowings from related parmes 2,77,84,350.00 : - 2 - 2,77,84.350.00
Trade parable 13,03,611.40 - - : > 13,03,611.40
Other financual habalities 34,582.65 - - - - 34,582.65
Total 2,91,22,544.05 - - S - 2,91,22,544.05
31 March 2024 Less than 1year| B 1B land | B 3 and |More than 4 years Total

and 2 years 2 years 4 years
Non-derivatives
Bormowings from related parties 83,17,690,00 Z P - 2 83,17,690.00
Trade payable 13,13,705.06 - = - = 13,13,705.06
Other financial hatalibes 68,183,839 ;. = = - 68,183.89
Total 96,99,578.95 - - = - 96,99,578.95
Market nsk

Foreign exchange risk
Company does not have any foreign currency risks and therefore sensitivity analysis has not been shown.

Interest rate risk
Company does not have any interest rate risks and therefore sensitivity analysis has not been shown.

Price risk
Company does not have any price nisk

005975N
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AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

¢ otherwise 113 ted

Summary of material accn
minting policies and o) |l
™ d other explanatory (nformation for the year ended 31 March 2025 All amonint i € hundeed, unle
Note « 322
Revenue relared disclosures
A Dixaggregation of revenue

Set out below i the disaggrepaton of the Company’s reveme from conttacts with customers

Particulars Yaeeces e 22

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
et

Revenue from coniracts with customers

i ; 31,98,284.94
[0 Revemue from opemtions: Revenve from sle of properties and developed plots (e 1,15,137.83
(nl Income from adnsor servces and service tecerpts g 'D "'22‘77
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 CEILL —_—i'_—'——‘

B Contract balances
The following tble provdes informaton about recevables, assets and contract labilites from contract with customens.
Particulars i i
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contract liabilities

Advance from customers 130485085 e T
Total contract liabilitics L3 BARST LM
Receivables

o . 550,56 17.804.57
Total receivables 35056 e

Is or services transferred to the customer, Conteact labity is

Contract asset i the nght to conndenation m exchange for good
dvance. Contract asscts (unbilled receivables) are trans

for which the entity has recerved considention from the customer i a
contract hsbilitics are recognised as and when the performance obligation i satisfied.

the entity's obliga
ferred to receivables when the oghts b

ton to transfer goods or services (0 A customer
ecome unconditional and

C  Signifi hanges in the liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 P
Particulars Contract liabilitics Contract liabilities
Advances from customers Advances from customers

Opening balance 1,73,26,284.44 1,89,69,914.16
Addinon/(refund) dunng the year 20,43,156.72 15,54,655.22
Revenue recognised dunng the year (63,20,622.59) (31.98,284.94)

Closing balance 1,30,48,818.57 1,73,26,284.44

1 { 1o the whicd perfe blig as at 31 March 2025 is T 1,30,48,818.57 hundred (31 March 2024: T 1,73,44,089.01 hundred) This

D The ageregate amount of transaction pace

The

F
balance represents the advance received from customers (gross) against real estate prop under develop

total consideration in the coming years. These balances will be eecogaized as cevenue in funuee years as pee the policy of the Company.

expects to further bill and collect the remaming balance of

E Reconaliation of gnised with
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Contract revenue 64,01,819.39 33,13,422.77
R: recognised 64,01,819.39 33,13,422.77




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

g, lal 1
y of & policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2025 s e hundred, unless otherwise atated
Note -33
Details with respect to the Benami (124
properties h 2025 and 31 March 2024,
No proceedings have been mitiated or pending against the entity under the Benami Tansactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 for the yea ended 31 Mise
Note -M
e e come during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March

There 1 no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts, No such income is suerendered or disclosed as ind
2024 mn the tax assessments under Tncome Tax Acy, 1961,

Note -35
Details of t
l'mﬁ: '."ol"ﬁ'::: :‘(3:":“” n"v“"‘lllfc‘."mq ¢ or Viewal Currenc: No such transaction has taken place during the year
nsacbons involving Ceypto cuerency or Vieual C: y it o1 Stk
ken place during the year
o : No such tansaction has taken pi
AFE e Rl AR ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
No such transaction has taken place during the year

Deposits or advances from any person for the pumpose of trading or investing in Crypto Currency / virtual currency At ST Bk

Note 36
Ratio Analysis
ing i i 31 March 20! d 31 March 2024

I:;::::n 2ec snatysical ranos for th 1:’;:.::‘::‘:::’ s Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 Variance  [Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilitics 0.61 0.81 -24.43% e
Debt Equity Ratio® Total Debts |Shareholder's Equity NA NA NA [Not zpvhﬂb]
Retum on Equity (ROE)* Net Profit After Taxes Average Shareholder's Equity NA NA NA |Not applicable
Trade Recesvables tumover mbo Revenue Average Trade Receivable 70235 37545 87.07%|Refer note A
Trade Payables mimover ano Purchase of services and other expenses | Average Teade Payable 6.78 270 150 89%|Refer note A
Retum of Capital Employed (ROCE)#  [Eaming before interest taxes Capital Employed NA NA NA |Not applicable
Ilnn:nmn- TUMOVEr Aho Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 0.47 0.16 188.73%|Refer note A

Note A-In the real estate business, revenue along with the corresponding cost to sales is recognised on the pomnt in tme basis and hence, the increase and decrease will not be directly
ascermuned basis merease/decrease i buswess. Accordingly, the current year mtios are not comparablt with previous year,

*Rano can not be alculated due 1o negatve sharcholde’s equity during the current year as well as in previous year.
#Rano can not be caleulated duc to neganve eamings before interest taxes duning the current yeac as well as in previous year

Followwng mnos are not applicable in view of the fact that either numerator or denominator does not have any value:
Debt semce coverage rano, Net capital tumover ratio, Net profit ratio and Return on investment ratio.

Note -37
Wilful Defaulter:
No bank or financal instituton has declared the company as "Wilful defaulter” during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note -38
Details in respect of Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium:

During the yeac ended 31 March 2025 no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or shace premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company 1o or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermedianes”) with the und. ding, whether ded in wnung or otherwise, that the Intermedury shall
lend or mvest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

Duniag the year ended 31 March 2025 the Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the und ling that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly
lend or mvest i other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the funding party (“Ultimate Beneficianies”) or provide any guarantee, secunty or the ke on behalf of the Ulamate
Benehoanes, except details given below:

Details of funds received

S. No. Details of funding providers Amount Nature of i Purpose
Fellow subsidiary company Inter corporate deposits taken To finance working capital
1] (refer note 44) 1.90.84.350.00 requiremnent.
Non- convertible debentures To finance working capital
2|Holding company (refer note-44 ) 87,00,000.00 |issued requirement.
Details of funds given
S. No. Details of funding providers Amount Nature of transaction Purpose
Fellow subsidiary company Inter corporate deposits given To finance working capital
1|(refer note -44) 1,83,55,300.00. requirement
Forab ioned the company has complied with applicable rules and regulation of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note -39

Relationship with Struck off Companies:

No transaction has been made with the company struck off under section 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024.

Note 40
Registration of charges or satisfaction with Regi: of Compani
All apphcable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is requi have been done. No registration or satisfaction is pending for the year ended 31 March

2025 and 31 March 2024,



ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of
matesin] accommting policies and ather explanatory information for the year ended 1 Mareh 2025

Nore 41

Complience with mumber of lrvers of companies:

The coompram has = 5
-nr‘:r‘:v:\ the m"-nhrv of tepers preserbed imder ehuse (37) of section 2 of the Act eead with Companies
Teprmd the hemt preseried 1 per above mid eeenon / miles during the yeae ended 31 March 2025

" hme Deen

Newe 42

lmmmmnﬁm.mmmh-mlwwnlnﬂlpnﬂ«z

All amovnr in € hundred, unfest othe:

and 31 Mareh 2024

(Restriction on amber of Layers) Rules, 20

preive stated

17 and no layers of

Particular

31 March 2023

3 March 2024

31 March 2025

| 31 March 2024

Tepe of Brrrrerer

Amennt of Losn or advance in the
mareee of oan sweetanding

Amount of Loan or advance
in the namre of loan

Percentage to the total Loans
and advances In natures of

autstanding

Percentage to the total Loans
and advances in natures of
Iovans (s

100"

1,83.85.300.00

4i'£-m@l_

Tielasedd Darves fopfor man we 84 for dorml)*

1,83,35,300,00

o

100

Tosl

Thee \mne nee praeeedd 15 selmend parnes abeeh are eeparabie on deenand




ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financia
vear ended 31 March 2025

| statements for the

All amount in & hundred, unless otherwise stare

Note - 43

Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

*  To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and

*  To provide adequate retum to sharcholders

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The dCUlTP"_”;J"
the s

manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconomic conditions an
charactenistics of the undetlying assets. The Company manages its capital requirements by reviewing its net debt position, Wh_ﬂc
ities of non-curtent borrowings) and short-term borrowing

net debt is equal to non-current borrowing (including current maturn
net of cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances.

Note - 44
Related party transactions

Relationship Name of the related partics

Related parties eanang aomiml/
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox

India Developments Limited and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate
Limited) (till 26 March 2024)

Ultimate Holding Company

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox
India Developments Limited and eatlier Indiabulls Real Estate
| Limited) (w.e.f 27 March 2024)

Holding Company

Lorita Developers Limited (till 26 March 2024)

I
Ozher related party®
' Eellow gurl,:,;::ﬁ Companies Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
; Constructions Limited)
) Citra Properties Limited
Tapir Constructions Limited
j Sky Forest Projects Private Limited (Formetly known as Indiabulls
l

Properties Private Limted)(w.e.f. 29 April 2024)

* [ izh whom transactions have been made during the year/ previous year

(i) Statement of transactions with related parties:

Nfatte of 5 For the year ended | For the year ended
ature of transactions Sosds e

Loans and advances given/(received back), net
Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Citra Properties Limited

Tapir Constructions Limited

52,06,800.00 -
1,30,58,500.00 B

Loans and advances taken/(repaid), net

Fellow Subsidiary Company:
Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Constructions Limited)

(83,17,690.00) 11,78,900.00

Jssue of Non-Convertible Debenture
Holding company:

Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India 1,85,00,000.00 -
Developments Limited and earlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate

)

005975N
New Delhi




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financ

year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in T hundred, unless oth

jal statements for the

crwise state

Redemption of Non-Convertible Debenture

Holding company:
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India
Developments Limited and eatlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate

(98,00,000.00)

Limited)

Interest expenses on Non-Convertible Debenture

Holding company:
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India

9.58

Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

Business Support Expenses

61,655.00

Holding company:
Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox
Developments Limited and earlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited)

India

98,272.89

(ii) Statement of balances outstanding:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Loans and advances given/(received back), net

Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Citra Properties Limited

52,96,800.00

Tapir Constructions Limited

1,30,58,500.00

Loans and advances taken/(repaid), net

Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

Devona Constructions Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Constructions Limited)

83,17,690.00

Sky Forest Projects Private Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls
Properties Private Limted)(w.e.f. 29 April 2024)

1,90,84,350.00

|Non-Convertible Debenture

company:
ssy Developments Limited (Formerly known as Equinox India
I Limited and eatlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate

87,00,000.00

ts Limited (Formetly known as Equinox India
1d earlier known as Indiabulls Real Estate

35,690.07

60,610.00

e 005975N

New Delhi
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ATRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED for the
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements [of

veat ended 31 March 2025
All amount in € hundred, unless otherwise state

Note - 48
Contingent liabilitice and commitment

Contingent liabilities, not acknowledged as debt, inchde:
Particulare 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Sermee tax demand i tespect of which appeals have been filed Commissioner 13375.23 13,375.23
{Appeals), Mumbai FY 2011-12
SUN for paseing tas benefit to customers [(Anti profiteening), DGPA, Delhi, April 6.46.062.27 6,46,062.27
2017 1o March 2019 Hig
Credit of SGST clatmed i Trans- 1, Assistant Commissioner, Visakhapatnam, FY 4304.84 4,304.84
201718 3
Credi of 1K cdwmed i Trans: 1, Supenntendent of Central Tax, Madhurwada 1,504.50 1,504.50
GST Rnngt, Visakhapatnam, FY 2017-18 2

Tased o the defence taken 10 these matters and the independent legal advice from the Counsels, the management believes
that these 15 5 reasonably likelihood that the there is no material liability will devolve on the Company in respect of these

matters

There am 0o other contingent habilities and commitments to be reported as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

Note - 46
Gratuity and compensated absences
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company has made ¥ 4,674.02 hundred (31 March 2024:  286.33 hundred) contributions in respect of provident fund.

Dcfined Bencefit Plan
The Company has the following Defined Benefit Plans:

® Granaty (Unfunded)
® Compensated absences (Unfunded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's
Discount rate ask liability.

Aana 1 S ‘ B
Salary sk Ayt )! c in future valuations will also increase the liability.

higher orlower than assumed withdrawals and
sequent valuations can impact Plan's




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financi

year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in & hundred, unless othery

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation:

al statements for the

vise state

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Actuarial (gain)/loss on adsing from change in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuanal (gain)/loss on arising from change in experience
adjustment

102.36

(1,234.60)

94.67

(1,220.16)

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 |

Service cost 9,535.24 2,084.81
Net Interest cost 532.52 33986
Actuarial (gain) /loss for the year (1,132.24) (1,125:49
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 8,935.52 (1,399.18) |
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 7,375.60 5,976.42
year
Present value of defined benefit obligation received for employees
transferred to the Company =
Current service cost 9,535.24 2,084.81
Interest cost 532.52 439.86
Actuarial (gain)/loss, net (1,132.24) (1,125.49)
Benefits paid (516.75) S
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the
year 15,794.37 7,375.60
- Current 625.08 164.32
- Non-Current 15,169.29 7.211.28

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars Compensated absences
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15% 7.22%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of

plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuaral appraisers. Discount factors
are determined close to each year-end by reference to govemment bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical

experience.




AIRMID REAL ESTATE LIMITED
ancial statements for the

Q : : { :
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanat
year ended 31 March 2025

ory information to the fin

All amount in T hundred, unless otherwise state

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation PO
Year 31 March 2025 | Year 31 March 2024
a) April 2025 - March 2026 625.08 | Aprl 2024 - March 2025 164.32
b) April 2026 - March 2027 3.051.78 | April 2025 - March 2026 327.28
<) April 2027 - March 2028 215.99 | April 2026 - March 2027 2,183.00
d) April 2028- March 2029 883.11 | April 2027 - March 2028 90.72
e) Apal 2029- March 2030 191.80 | April 2028- March 2029 466.48
f April 2030- March 2031 7,096.97 | Apsl 2029- March 2030 76.94
g Apadl 2031 onwards 2,829.64 | Apnl 2030 onwards 4,066.86
Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences liability
Particulars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate _
Present value of obligation at the end of the
year 15,794.37 7,375.60
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (664.92) (319.80)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 705.40 339.22
Impact of the change in salary increase —
Present value of obligation at the end of the
year 15,794.37 7,375.60
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 722.68 347.91
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % §672.89) (323.71)
al & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not materi
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gra
employee's last drawn basic salary per month computed pro
service. Gratuity plan is a non-funded plan.

Payment of
tuity. The amount of gratuity pay
portionately for 15 days salary m

Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
able on retirement/ termination 1s the
ultiplied for the number of years of

Actuarial gain/ (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumptions < >
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumptions 507.69 233.52
Actuagal (gain)/loss on afsing from change in experence adjustment 894.18 383.34
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss is as under:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Service cost 4,087.88 3,614.01
Net Interest cost 1,505.01 1,234.48
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss 5,592.89 4,848.49
Movement in the liability recognized in the palance sheet is as undet:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 2084497 1677285
Present value of defined benefit obligation received for employees transferred to
4,087.88 3,614.01

the Company
Current service cost

005975N
New Delhi
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial stat
year ended 31 March 2025

ements for the

All amount in & hundred, unless otherwise state

Interest cost 1,505.01 1,234.48
Actuanal (gain) /loss, net 1,401.87 616.86
Benefits paid i (1,393.23
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 27,839.73 20,844.97 |
- Current 1,408.12 433.67
- Non Current 26,431.61 20,411.30

For determination of the liability of the Company, the following actuarial assumptions were used:

ol

Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.99% 7.22%
Salary escalaton rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14)

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value

of plan assets has not been presented.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount

factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic

markets and that

have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on

management’s historical experience.

Maturity plan of Defined Benefit Obligation

Year 31 March 2025 | Year 31 March 2024
a) April 2025 - March 2026 1,408.12 | April 2024 - March 2025 433.67
b) April 2026 - March 2027 9,981.23 | April 2025 - March 2026 1,080.18
c) Aprl 2027 - March 2028 318.03 | Apnl 2026 - March 2027 8,490.73
d) Apnl 2028- March 2029 1,685.25 | April 2027 - March 2028 208.84
e) Apnl 2029- March 2030 270.36 | April 2028- March 2029 1,347.14
f) Aprl 2030- March 2031 2,312.45 | Apnl 2029- March 2030 171.33
[3) April 2031 onwards 11,864.29 | Apnl 2030 onwards 9,113.08
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Particulars T 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 27,839.73 20,844.97
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (1,079.99) (810.86)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1,172.20 878.17
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 27,839.73 20,844.97
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1,189.46 893.08
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1,104.66) (831.09)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.
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Note - 47

Provident Fund

Pursuant to recent judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India dated 28 February 2019, it was held that basic wages, for
the purpose of provident fund, to include allowances which are common for all employees, However, there is uncertainty with
respect to the applicability of the judgement and period from which the same applies and accordingly, the Company has not
provided for any liability on account of this,

Notc — 48

The Indian Padiament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company
towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment had released draft rules for the Code on Social
Secunity, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject nules are notified. The Company will give
Appropnate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to
determine the finandial impact are published.

Note — 49
Segmental information
The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company 1.e.

development of real estate projects which as per Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’ is considered to be the only reportable
business segment. The Company is operating in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

Note - 50
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant to Ind AS 7 - Cash flows
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
(X in hundred)

P rticalars Curxe.nt Total
Borrowings

Net debt as at 01 April 2023 71,38,790.00 71,38,790.00
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 26,00,400.00 26,00,400.00
Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings (14,21,500.00) (14,21,500.00)
Net debt as at 31 March 2024 83,17,690.00 83,17,690.00
Proceeds from inter-corporate borrowings 2,45,83,190.00 2,45,83,190.00
Repayment of inter-corporate borrowings (1,38,16,530.00) (1,38,16,530.00)
Proceeds from issue to non convertible debentures 1,85,00,000.00 1,85,00,000.00
Repayment of non convertible debentures (98,00,000.00) (98,00,000.00)
Interest expense 40,009.58 40,009.58
Interest expense paid (40,009.58) (40,009.58)
Net debt as at 31 March 2025 2,77,84,350.00 2,77,84,350.00

Note — 51

Audit Trail

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notification, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, for the financial year commencing 1 April 2023, every company which uses accounting softwares for maintaining
its books of account, shall use only such accounting softwares which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and
every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such
changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The interpretation and guidance on what level
edit log and audit trail needs to be maintained evolved during the year and continues to evolye.

The Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account for the year, which have features of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility at application level as well as database level and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares except one software where audit trial (edit log)
facility at database level was not available. Recording of audit trail (edit logs) can be disabled using restricted privileged
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rights for direct data changes at database level. Since the company has other necessary controls in pIcss Wh,ICh g
operaung effectively, this feature will not adversely impact its data and audit log retention directly at database level.
Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record rc(cnu;'m

frwares for

except that the audit trail at the database level for the Company has not been preserved in the accounting so

the period from 1 Apnl 2023 to 31 March 2024,

Note - 52

Business Combination of holding company

The Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi Bench ("NCLAT"), on 7 January 2025, approved the
scheme of amalgamation of Nam Estates Private Limited ("NAM") and Embassy One Commercial Property Dcwl'clopmcnys
Pavate Limited ("EOCPDPL") with Embassy Developments Limited ("EDL") (formerly known as Equinox Ind'l:'\
Developments Limited and cadier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited) and their respective sharcholders and creditors ("Scheme )
pursuant to sec 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with Companies
(Compromises, Artangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. Pursuant to the NCLAT Order, EDL and NAM have filed
the certified true copy of the court order with the respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies on 24 January 2025, thereby
giving effect to the scheme ("Effective Date").

Subsequent to the scheme becoming effective, a few of the current NAM sharcholders, namely JV Holding Private Limited
(IVHPL), four individuals, and two other entitics (referred to as the "Promoter/Promoter Group"), became the largest

shareholders of the EDL, the company’s holding company.

Note - 53

Other matters
The Company has not entered into any derivative instrument during the year. The Company does not have any foreign

a
currency exposures towards receivables, payables or any other derivative instrument that have not been hedged.

In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be
credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appeating in the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2025, have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, at least equal
to the amount at which they are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of the board of directors, no provision

is required to be made against the recoverability of these balances.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Embassy Developments Limited (Formerly Equinox India
Developments Limited and carlier Indiabulls Real Estate Limited), whether directly or indirectly which is having a
net worth of X 1,01,70,98,001.72 hundred. The Company will get all necessary support financially and otherwise
from its holding company and thus, the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
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